
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, September 15, 2014

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Proclamation declaring September 18, 2014 Pitt Hopkins Awareness Day in the City of
Beloit (Spreitzer)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Resolution approving a 2014 HOME Budget Amendment (Christensen)
Community Development Authority Recommendation for approval 6-0

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the
General Order of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular meeting of September 2, 2014 (LeMire)

b. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor
sales, possession and consumption of alcohol in the CBD-2, Central Business District-
Fringe, for the property located at 500 Pleasant Street (Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint)
(Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission

c. Application for an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and “Class B” liquor license for
Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint, LLC, Owned by Geronimo Hospitality Group, LLC, d/b/a
Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint, located at 500 Pleasant Street, for an Outdoor
Premises Extension (LeMire) Refer to ABLCC

d. Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for
Fiesta Cancun Authentic Mexican Restaurant of Beloit, Inc., Jose Cortes, Agent, located
at 2648 Prairie Avenue (LeMire) ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0

e. Resolution approving Change of Agent for the Board of Trustees – Beloit College, d/b/a
Beloit College Coughy Haus, located at 708 Clary Street, from Steven Oliveri to Katie
Marse (LeMire) ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0



f. Resolution approving Change of Agent for The Last Lap Inc., d/b/a The Last Lap,
located at 1028 Mary Street, from James W. Sandmire to Bradley J. Sandmire (LeMire)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0

g. Resolution awarding Public Works Contract C14-14, Eagles Ridge Park Pedestrian
Path (Boysen)

7. ORDINANCES – none

8. APPOINTMENTS

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to Acquire Tax Delinquent Properties from the
Rock County Treasurer (Christensen)

b. Resolution authorizing release of Deed Restriction for 1021 Central Avenue
(Christensen)

c. Resolution rescinding Public Works Contract C14-04 bid award, Gateway Sewer and
Water Extension (Boysen)

d. Resolution re-awarding Public Works Contract C14-04, Gateway Sewer and Water
Extension and amending the 2013 Capital Improvements Budget (Boysen)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the
City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: September 10, 2014
Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City of Beloit City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Wednesday at 8:30 a.m. and

Thursday at 9:00 a.m. and the following Monday at 8:00 p.m.

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


WHEREAS, Pitt Hopkins Syndrome (PTHS) is a rare and severe neurological disorder caused by a
spontaneous mutation of the 18th chromosome; and

WHEREAS, PTHS is characterized by developmental delays, moderate to severe intellectual disability,
breathing abnormalities, epilepsy, gastrointestinal issues, and distinctive facial features, with most not developing
speech; and

WHEREAS, the gene that causes this condition was only discovered in 2007 and there may be many who
remain undiagnosed; and

WHEREAS, only approximately 500 people have been diagnosed worldwide with Pitt Hopkins; and

WHEREAS, children with PTHS typically have a happy, excitable demeanor with frequent smiling and
laughter; and

WHEREAS, 5-year old Adalyn Grace Chadwick, a cheerful, loving young resident of Beloit who attends
Converse School was diagnosed with PTHS; and

WHEREAS, Miss Chadwick, who could not even roll over at the age of 1, through hard work and intensive
therapy, can now walk and communicate through the use of an iPad; and

WHEREAS, the Chadwick family wishes to educate the public on PTHS and raise awareness of the Pitt
Hopkins Research Foundation which funds research that will lead to treatments and a cure for PTHS;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF THE CITY OF BELOIT, does hereby
proclaim Thursday, September 18, 2014 as

PITT HOPKINS AWARENESS DAY

in the City of Beloit, and hopes to expand recognition for the disorder, help raise awareness and research
towards a cure.

Presented this 15th day of September 2014.

Mark Spreitzer, Beloit City Council President
ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



RESOLUTION
AMENDING THE HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP (HOME) BUDGET

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit has $286,000 in 2010-2013 HOME Investment
Partnership Program (HOME) dollars; and

WHEREAS, the HOME funds are required to be expended in a timely manner and
the funds allocated to the City’s housing rehabilitation loan program are not being spent in
a timely manner; and

WHEREAS, the moving and rehabilitation of 310 Euclid is an eligible HOME activity;
and

WHEREAS, the project is consistent with the City’s Consolidated Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, hereby amends the HOME Budget to allow $150,000 of HOME
funds to be used for the demolition and rehabilitation project at 422 Bluff Street/310
Euclid Avenue.

Adopted this 15th day of September, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, Council President

ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Page 2 of 6

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Reallocation of City HOME funds

Date: September 15, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community
Development Authority

Overview/Background Information:

In July 2001, the City of Beloit, Rock County and City of Janesville formed the Rock County HOME
Consortium. This allows us to receive HOME funds directly from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) similar to CDBG.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. According to HOME Investment Partnership Program guidelines, 19 percent of the HOME funds are
allocated to the City of Beloit. Historically, we have allocated these funds to the City’s Housing Rehab
Revolving Loan Fund

2. The City of Beloit currently has a balance in its 2010 – 2013 HOME Program funds of $286,000. At
this point, these funds are allocated to the City’s Housing Rehab Revolving Loan Fund. We are
receiving very few applications for these HOME funds, partially due to the fact that the entire
property has to be brought up to code when a HOME loan is awarded, and many homeowners cannot
afford to bring their entire property up to code.

3. At this point, the City is proposing to rehab a house we purchased from Rock County last year via the
tax foreclosure process: 310 Euclid Avenue. This parcel of land includes two houses (see attached
map and photos). 422 Bluff Street is the larger reddish colored house which faces Bluff Street and
310 Euclid is the white house facing Euclid Avenue. The proposal is to demolish 422 Bluff Street and
move the Euclid house to the front of the parcel.

4. We initially proposed demolishing both structures and constructing a new house on the site because
the 422 Bluff Street house is in terrible condition and would be too expensive to rehab. However, the
Landmarks Commission suggested demolishing the 422 Bluff Street house and moving the Euclid
structure to the front of the parcel since it was in much better shape than the Bluff house. The City
evaluated this option and the Euclid house is structurally sound and can be moved. Therefore, the
City applied for and has received approval from the Landmarks Commission to demolish 422 Bluff
Street and move 310 Euclid to the front of the property to face Bluff Street.

5. We are utilizing CDBG dollars and CIP dollars to demolish the structure and would like to utilize the
City’s HOME funds to build a foundation, move the house, and rehab the house. We are estimating



Page 3 of 6

that the amount of HOME funds needed would be $150,000. This property needs a significant amount
of work due to the fact that it was declared unfit prior to the City purchasing the property and has
been sitting vacant for a couple of years.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its
impact on the City’s mission.):

o Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5 - Apply sound, sustainable practices to
promote a high quality community through historic preservation, community revitalization and new
development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program
related to how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following
eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Not applicable

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in
nature – Not Applicable

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – Not Applicable

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – This proposal
would allow us to retain one of the two historic structures located on a lot in the City of Beloit,
which would bring the parcel into compliance with the City’s Zoning Ordinance.

Action required/Recommendation:
Consideration of the attached resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
The City’s HOME funds are required to be allocated to eligible projects or we risk losing the funds

Attachments:
Location Map, Photos and Resolution



Page 4 of 6

Photos of 422 Bluff Street and 310 Euclid Avenue



Page 5 of 6

422 Bluff Street – East Side

422 Bluff Street – North Side



Page 6 of 6

310 Euclid Avenue



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
Tuesday, September 2, 2014

Presiding: Mark Spreitzer
Present: Sheila De Forest, Charles M. Haynes, Regina Hendrix, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, and

David F. Luebke
Absent: None

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS – none

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented a resolution authorizing a
Conditional Use Permit to allow Alcohol Sales in a PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, for
the property located at 2222 Shopiere Road, for Our Lady of Assumption Church. It was noted
that the Plan Commission recommended approval 5-0. Ms. Christensen handed out a substitute
resolution, which limits the number of events to 15 per year and requires that the applicant obtain
the proper alcohol licenses for each event. Councilor Spreitzer opened and closed the public
hearing without participation. Councilor De Forest asked about the types of events planned and
how they will deal with minors. Applicant Randy Gracyalny said that bartenders will check the
identification of those purchasing beer or wine and will ensure that minors are not at the events
without parents. Mr. Gracyalny said that he understands the licensing and bartender
requirements and that the bartenders and most attendees will be parishioners. Councilor Luebke
made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Kelly seconded. The motion carried 7-0.
File 8645/8655

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION – none

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilor Haynes made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda, and Councilor Hendrix seconded.
The motion carried that the Consent Agenda be accepted, approved, adopted, or referred and acted
upon as required by state and local codes by a vote of 7-0.

a. The Minutes of the Regular and Special meetings of August 18, 2014, were approved.

7. ORDINANCES – none

8. APPOINTMENTS – none

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
 Councilor De Forest thanked City Attorney Tom Casper for his years of service to the City of

Beloit and congratulated him on his retirement. She stated that she is deeply concerned
about the increase in violence in the City and that she would like those in leadership positions
to communicate with residents regarding a plan to reduce the violence.

 Councilor Luebke thanked Mr. Casper for his service to the City. He said that Mr. Casper
served with dignity, class, wisdom, and humility.



 Councilor Hendrix said that she is excited for the start of the new school year and is looking
forward to more school district events.

 Councilor Haynes said that he feels melancholy about Mr. Casper’s retirement. He said that
Mr. Casper has been a steady figure and is irreplaceable.

 Councilor Kelly said that she went to several schools that day and the school year seemed to
be off to a good start. She thanked Mr. Casper for his service to Beloit.

 Councilor Spreitzer thanked Mr. Casper for his service and said that it has been a pleasure
working with him. He said that he appreciates Mr. Casper’s advice, warmth, and calm
demeanor. He said that he attended Beloit College and Friends of the Riverfront’s Welcome
to Our Town event that brought students off campus to see Beloit’s downtown and riverfront.
He said that he has had conversations with the City Manager and the Police Chief regarding
the recent violence in Beloit and the City’s response.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS – none

12. At 7:14 p.m., Councilor Hendrix made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Councilor Kelly
seconded. The motion carried 7-0.

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk
www.ci.beloit.wi.us
Date approved by Council:



CU-2014-07, Ironworks Hotel, 500 Pleasant Street, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 500 Pleasant Street – Council Referral to the Plan
Commission

Date: September 15, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Kevin Rogers of Hendricks Commercial Properties, on behalf of the Ironworks Hotel/Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint, has filed
an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of
alcohol in the CBD-2, Central Business District – Fringe, for the property located at 500 Pleasant Street.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant has proposed a second outdoor patio, which will be constructed just north of the restaurant’s existing

outdoor patio.
 The proposed patio will be utilized during major events (e.g. wedding receptions, business meetings) and will be

accessible through existing exit doors serving the restaurant’s private dining areas.
 The proposed patio is approximately 1,500 square feet in area and will consist of stamped concrete surrounded by a

cedar semi-privacy fence that is 32 inches in height.
 Section 4-902 of the Zoning Ordinance states that outdoor seating areas for restaurants in the CBD are only allowed if

reviewed and approved in accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review procedures. The application and site
plan are attached to this report.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the September 17, 2014 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on October 6, 2014

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Site Plan & Application



CU-2014-07, Ironworks Hotel, 500 Pleasant Street, Council Referral



CU-2014-07, Ironworks Hotel, 500 Pleasant Street, Council Referral



CU-2014-07, Ironworks Hotel, 500 Pleasant Street, Council Referral







RESOLUTION APPROVING A CLASS “B” BEER
AND RESERVE “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE

WHEREAS, an application has been received for a Class “B” Beer and
Reserve “Class B” Liquor License from Fiesta Cancun Authentic Mexican
Restaurant of Beloit Inc., located at 2648 Prairie Avenue, Jose Cortes, Agent; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee
recommended approval of this Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor
License for the 2014-2015 license year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Beloit does hereby approve a Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor
License for Fiesta Cancun Authentic Mexican Restaurant of Beloit Inc., located at
2648 Prairie Avenue, Jose Cortes, Agent.

Dated this 15th day of September 2014.

_______________________________
Mark Spreitzer, City Council President

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Rebecca Houseman Le Mire, City Clerk



ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE CONTROL COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATION

TO: Beloit City Council

FROM: Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee

DATE: September 9, 2014

SUBJECT: Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License
Fiesta Cancun Authentic Mexican Restaurant of Beloit, Inc.

The Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommends approval to the
City Council, of the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License of
Fiesta Cancun Authentic Mexican Restaurant, 2648 Prairie Avenue, Jose Cortes,
Agent.

Motion carried 6-0.

Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City Clerk













RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE OF AGENT
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE

WHEREAS, the Agent of record for the Board of Trustees-Beloit College, d/b/a
Beloit College Coughy House, located at 708 Clary Street, is Steven Oliveri; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees-Beloit College, d/b/a Beloit College Coughy
Haus, has requested and the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee has
recommended that the Agent be changed to Katie Marse.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit
that the Agent for the alcohol beverage license for the Board of Trustees-Beloit College,
d/b/a Beloit College Coughy House, located at 708 Clary Street, is hereby changed to
Katie Marse.

Dated this 15th day of September 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

_______________________________
Mark Spreitzer, City Council President

Attest:

__________________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE CONTROL COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATION

TO: Beloit City Council

FROM: Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee

DATE: September 9, 2014

SUBJECT: Change of Agent, Beloit College Coughy Haus

The Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommends approval to the
City Council, of the Change of Agent for Beloit College Coughy Haus, 708 Clary
Street, from Steven Oliveri to Katie Marse.

Motion carried 6-0.

Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City Clerk







RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE OF AGENT
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE

WHEREAS, the Agent of record for The Last Lap Inc., d/b/a The Last Lap,
located at 1028 Mary Street, is James W. Sandmire; and

WHEREAS, The Last Lap Inc., d/b/a The Last Lap, has requested and the
Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee has recommended that the Agent be
changed to Bradley J. Sandmire.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit
that the Agent for the alcohol beverage license for The Last Lap Inc., d/b/a The Last
Lap, located at 1028 Mary Street, is hereby changed to Bradley J. Sandmire.

Dated this 15th day of September 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

_______________________________
Mark Spreitzer, City Council President

Attest:

__________________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE CONTROL COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATION

TO: Beloit City Council

FROM: Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee

DATE: September 9, 2014

SUBJECT: Change of Agent, The Last Lap, Inc.

The Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommends approval to the
City Council, of the Change of Agent at The Last Lap, 1028 Mary Street, from
James W. Sandmire to Bradley J. Sandmire.

Motion carried 6-0.

Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City Clerk







RESOLUTION
AWARDING PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT C14-14

EAGLES RIDGE PARK PEDESTRIAN PATH

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2014, two competitive bids were received, the low bid being
from Corporate Contractors, Inc., and;

WHEREAS, This project will construct a 10’ wide - 1900’ long asphalt pedestrian path in
Eagles Ridge Park and;

WHEREAS, Corporate Contractors, Inc. is a qualified bidder;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Beloit City Council that Contract
C14-14, Eagles Ridge Park Pedestrian Path, be, and hereby is, awarded to Corporate Contractors, Inc,
Beloit, WI, in the following amounts:

Corporate Contractors, Inc.
655 3rd St. Suite 101
Beloit, WI 53511

Base Bid $ 67,435.75
Allowance for Change Orders and/or Extra Work $ 10,064.25
TOTAL PROJECT COST $ 77,500.00

AND IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the amount of $77,500.00, be, and hereby is,
funded as follows:

P5005571-5511-2014 Buildings/Construction $ 77,500.00

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 15th day of September, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, President
ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Award of Contract C14-14, Eagles Ridge Park Pedestrian Path

Date: September 15, 2014

Presenter(s): Greg Boysen, Public Works Director Department(s): Public Works/ Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

This project will construct a 10’ wide - 1900’ long asphalt pedestrian path in Eagles Ridge Park.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Two bids were received for this project. The low bid of $67,435.75 was from Corporate Contractors, Inc. and is 66%
more than the engineer’s estimate of $40,635.00.

2. Corporate Contractors, Inc. is considered a responsible bidder for this project.
3. The costs for this project are as follows: $67,435.75 for construction, $ 10,064.25 for Change Orders or extra work,

for a total of $77,500.00.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources
to further Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

This project will enhance the quality of life in Beloit by providing upgraded park amenitites.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

n/a

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

n/a

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

n/a

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

The path will provide a great park amenity to residents on the far northeast part of the City.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends awarding this Public Works Contract to Corporate Contractors, Inc. in the amount of
$67,435.75

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Funding is available in the 2014 Capital Improvement Plan.



CITY OF BELOIT
DEPARTMENTAL CORRESPONDENCE

TO: Mike Flesch
FROM: Bill Frisbee, Storm Water Engineer
DATE: September 5, 2014
SUBJECT: Bid Results for Contract C14-14

Eagles Ridge Park Pedestrian Path

Pursuant to advertisements placed August 20 and August 27, bids were received until 10:00
AM on September 4 for the Eagles Ridge Park Pedestrian Path. A tabulation of bids is
attached.

Two bids were received for this project as follows:

1. Corporate Contractors, Inc. Beloit, WI $ 67,435.75
2. Rock Road Companies, Inc. Janesville, WI $ 68,756.49

Engineer's Estimate $ 40,635.00

Upon review of the Contractor’s Proof of Responsibility Statement, Corporate Contractors,
Inc. is determined to be a responsible bidder.

I recommend that the contract be awarded to Corporate Contractors, Inc. of Beloit, WI. The
following is a breakdown of the proposed project cost:

COSTS
Corporate Contractors, Inc. Base Bid $ 67,435.75
Allowance for Change Orders and/or Extra Work $ 10,064.25

TOTAL PROJECT COST $ 77,500.00

PROJECT INFORMATION
This project will construct a 10’ wide - 1900’ long asphalt pedestrian path in Eagles Ridge
Park.





RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACQUIRE TAX DELINQUENT PROPERTIES FROM THE

ROCK COUNTY TREASURER

WHEREAS, the City Council has established a strategic goal to promote a high quality
community through historic preservation, community revitalization, and successful new
development; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted a policy on Housing Incentives, which authorizes the
Community Development Department to identify properties in the City that could be acquired for
resale and redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, Rock County is planning on acquiring numerous properties through court action
on September 17, 2014, and the Rock County properties will be offered for sale to the City of Beloit;
and

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Beloit hereby resolves that, contingent to
Rock County successfully obtaining free title to these properties through the tax foreclosure process,
the City Manager be, and is hereby, authorized to purchase the following real estate from Rock
County on behalf of the city: 1255 Harrison Avenue, 1215 Portland Avenue, 248 Merrill Street, 1743
Harrison Avenue, 520 North Street, and 904 Hackett Street, for a price to be determined by the Rock
County Treasurer through the tax foreclosure process.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager be, and is hereby, authorized to direct city
staff to attend the public auction on October 10, 2014 and place a bid(s) to purchase property(ies)
identified by the City Manager in an amount not to exceed $5,000.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager be, and is hereby, authorized to negotiate
terms and authorize the sales of those properties for the purpose of promoting redevelopment of
new housing in the City of Beloit.

AND IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the estimated amount of $55,422.64 be and hereby is,
funded as follows:

P2967520-5510-2013 Land Acquisition $40,818.64
73675200-524023-10471 NSP3 Resale & Rehab $8,476.36
P2902187-5514-2014 Street Maintenance $6,127.64

Adopted this 15th day of September, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, President
ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Purchase of the foreclosed properties from the Rock County Tax Foreclosure Proceedings

Date: September 15, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:

On January 21, 2003, the Beloit City Council adopted a policy which directed the Community
Development Department to work with the Rock County Treasurer to identify properties that are
available through tax foreclosure and could be acquired for resale.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Exhibit A identifies all Rock County tax foreclosed properties within the City of Beloit. This exhibit
identifies the four properties that staff is recommending for purchase and demolition, one property
to be purchased for acquisition-rehabilitation under the Neighborhood Stabilization Program, and
one property to be acquired for street improvements. This exhibit also includes the remaining
properties that we are not recommending for acquisition at this time.

2. Similar to the last three years, the City does not have enough money in the property acquisition
account to purchase all of the properties going into foreclosure. Given the limited budget, the staff
recommendations for purchase this year focus on houses that are dilapidated, non-conforming and
unfit for human habitation or properties which can be purchased with other funds. The houses that
are expected to be more cost effective for restoration are the ones that will go to public auction
conducted by Rock County. We are also recommending purchasing a vacant lot that is completely
surrounded by City-owned land. Exhibit A lists the existing land use, taxes, special assessments,
interest and expenses that the City would be required to pay Rock County to acquire these
properties. Exhibit B includes a brief description of each property and either a map or photo(s) of
the property.

3. One house, 520 North Street, is proposed to be purchased for rehabilitation under the Neighborhood
Stabilization Program (NSP). The City has NSP program income earned when NSP houses were sold
earlier this year. We would use those funds to purchase an additional house, rehab it and resell it to
an eligible home-owner.

4. A vacant lot located 904 Hackett Street is proposed to be purchased with street funds. This lot would
allow the City to improve the intersection of Portland Avenue and Hackett Street in the future.

5. Due to the timing of the City Council meetings and the Rock County foreclosure action, the City
Council is being asked to authorize the purchase of properties prior to the actual foreclosure court
action. Rock County’s foreclosure court date is September 17th, and Rock County will sell all
remaining properties gained in the court action to the general public on October 10th. The city must
buy the properties after the court date and before the auction. Therefore, there is the possibility that
Rock County may not get title to all of the properties that the City is requesting for purchase.



6. This year, there are a greater number of foreclosed properties that are in bad condition than there
are funds to acquire them. However, staff could attend the auction and bid on these houses. It is
possible we would be able to acquire a house for less than the amount owed to Rock County.
Therefore, the resolution includes a provision that would allow staff to spend up to $5,000 at the
public auction on October 10th to acquire these properties.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its
impact on the City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #4. By purchasing these properties, the City will
be removing sub-standard housing from the market. The end result will either be a newly rehabbed
house for resale or a vacant lot which may become part of an expanded yard or the location of a new
house.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program
related to how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following
eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Not applicable

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in
nature – Not Applicable

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – Not Applicable

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The purchase of
these houses will ensure that there is no negative impact on these neighborhoods as a result of the
foreclosure process.

Action required/Recommendation:

Approve the resolution authorizing the City Manager to acquire and sell the foreclosed properties and to
handle the negotiation and sale of these properties.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Funds have been budgeted annually, with $150,000 budgeted in 2014 for this housing program. As of
September 4, 2014, approximately $54,000 remains to cover the cost of acquisition of these residential
properties.

With the purchase price of the properties included in the resolution, this account will have approximately
$13,000 for the remainder of 2014 for condemnations, maintenance and other similar issues. The
demolition of these properties will have to wait until 2015.

Attachments:

Resolution, Exhibit A, and Exhibit B



Recommended Residential Properties for Purchase by the City of Beloit Using the City's Acquisition Fund
Address Land Use Estimated

(Parcel #) (Lot Size) Taxes Interest Penalty Assessment Interest Expenses Total

1255 Harrison Ave Multi Unit

(1256-0230) (56'x132')

1215 Portland Ave Single Family

(1341-0805) (53' x 125')

248 Merrill St Vacant Lot

(1351-0075) (38' x 60')

1743 Harrison Ave Single Family

(1258-0770) (50'x137')

Recommended Residential Property for Purchase by the City of Beloit Using NSP Funds
Address Land Use Estimated

(Parcel #) (Lot Size) Taxes Interest Penalty Assessment Interest Expenses Total

520 North St Single Family
(1265-1600) (50' x 80')

Recommended Property for Purchase by the City of Beloit Using Street Overlay Funds
Address Land Use Estimated

(Parcel #) (Lot Size) Taxes Interest Penalty Assessment Interest Expenses Total

904 Hackett St Vacant Lot

(1341-0940) (89' x 126')

Exhibit A
Properties Available Through Tax Foreclosure Sale

County Special Assessments

$3,525.05 $1,371.39 $613.44 $4,919.83 $1,226.88 $500.00 $12,156.59

$6,054.20 $2,364.76 $61.41 $925.83 $122.81 $500.00 $10,029.01

$399.35 $155.09 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $1,054.44

$14,701.72 $5,727.90 $1,070.07 $10,178.82

$6,127.64

County Special Assessments

$3,187.08 $1,566.95 $94.44 $590.28 $188.89 $500.00

Totals $2,000.00 $35,818.64$2,140.13

$4,723.12 $1,836.66 $395.22 $4,333.16 $790.44 $500.00 $12,578.60

$500.00 $8,476.36

County Special Assessments

$4,961.32 $1,869.21 $84.20 $893.24 $168.39



Exhibit A
Properties Available Through Tax Foreclosure Sale

All Others Not Selected
Address Land Use Estimated

(Parcel #) (Lot Size) Taxes Interest Penalty Assessment Interest Expenses Total Cost

1417 Copeland Ave Single Family
(1252-0595) (50' x 100')

1403 Carnegie Ct Single Family
(1253-1990) (53'x90')

922 Summit Ave Single Family
(1257-0765) (40'x124')

1206 Randall St Single Family
(1257-0960) (50' x 110')

231 Carpenter St Single Family
(1261-0060) (50'x113)

1850 Sixth St Single Family
(1268-0310) 18,730 sqft

1025 Moore St Single Family
(1341-1760) (50'x124')

635 Gaston Dr Single Family
(1353-0450) (30'x140')

1116 La Salle St Single Family
(1361-0800) (66'x148')

1035 Moore St Duplex
(1341-1750) (50'x124')

1009 Central Ave Duplex
(1361-0030) (49' x 136')

729 Central Ave Duplex
(1362-0205) (66' x 128')

2116 Christilla Dr Vacant Lot
(1213-2450) 22,650 sqft

2134 Christilla Dr Vacant Lot
(1213-2480) 45,740 sqft

2127 Christilla Dr Vacant Lot
(1213-2520) 52,270 sqft

2250 Trevino Ct Vacant Lot
(1226-0271) 76,700 sqft

2270 Trevino Ct Vacant Lot
(1226-0330) 21,870 sqft

$6,446.14 $2,625.60 $361.74 $2,230.25 $723.48 $500.00

$8,576.52

County Special Assessments

$251.13 $1,243.33 $502.25 $500.00 $7,786.32

$3,151.59 $1,223.94 $203.56 $963.29 $407.11 $500.00 $6,449.49

$3,809.98 $1,479.63

$7,898.18

$5,342.61 $2,074.85 $327.10 $1,524.85 $654.20 $500.00 $10,423.61

$3,950.29 $1,534.13 $248.59 $1,167.99 $497.18 $500.00

$12,551.93

$3,276.83 $1,274.99 $338.86 $2,833.45 $677.73 $500.00 $8,901.86

$3,130.02 $1,215.56 $407.89 $6,482.67 $815.79 $500.00

$3,996.79 $1,566.85 $437.24 $3,196.66 $874.47 $500.00 $10,572.01

$2,916.00 $1,111.53 $44.54 $675.23 $89.08 $500.00 $5,336.38

$6,695.33

$3,500.31 $1,374.04 $357.24 $2,738.55 $714.48 $500.00 $9,184.62

$2,280.68 $900.38 $280.49 $2,172.79 $560.99 $500.00

$7,941.59 $4,577.71 $842.70 $3,433.89 $1,685.40 $500.00 $18,981.29

$6,331.30 $2,461.20 $268.10 $2,564.78 $536.21 $500.00 $12,661.59

$7,626.99

$3,532.70 $1,386.62 $202.46 $1,730.57 $404.92 $500.00 $7,757.27

$4,385.33 $1,717.74 $42.03 $897.84 $84.05 $500.00

$500.00$51.11$342.94$25.56$2,030.90$5,626.01

$8,582.73$3,370.78 $1,323.74 $308.27 $2,463.41 $616.53 $500.00

$12,887.21



Exhibit A
Properties Available Through Tax Foreclosure Sale

1420 Porter Ave Vacant Lot
(1253-1090) (50'x125')

1021 White Ave Vacant Lot
(1256-0160) (71'x82')

1262 Dewey Ave Vacant Lot
(1256-0350) (66' x 124')

1341 Park Ave Vacant Lot
(1256-0800) (35'x100')

257 Liberty Ave Vacant Lot
(1264-0010) 9600 sqft

440 Burton St Vacant Lot
(1268-0312) 16,553 sqft

512 Highland Ave Vacant Lot
(1355-1145) (33'x160')

515 Eighth St Vacant Lot
(1356-0515) (66'x132')

$1,887.33$636.78 $247.30 $37.22 $391.59 $74.44 $500.00

$32,995.18

$1,398.93 $670.03 $1,219.57 $7,771.10 $2,439.13 $500.00 $13,998.76

$17,997.88 $0.00 $0.00 $14,497.30 $0.00 $500.00

$634.84$97.12 $37.72 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

$1,593.89$787.90 $305.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

$4,456.55$2,557.64 $1,398.91 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

$10,920.95

$1,046.93 $406.58 $118.61 $741.81 $237.22 $500.00 $3,051.15

$1,632.39 $879.26 $864.19 $5,316.74 $1,728.37 $500.00

Other Totals $99,144.52 $33,825.20 $7,187.09 $65,381.03 $14,374.14 $12,500.00 $232,411.98



Exhibit B
Properties Available Through Tax Foreclosure

This is a summary of the 31 properties (16 houses and 15 vacant lots) located in the City of
Beloit that are currently on the Rock County tax foreclosure list.

Properties Recommended for Purchase with the City’s Acquisition Fund

Below is the list of properties we are recommending for purchase by the City of Beloit using
the City’s CIP acquisition account.

1255 Harrison Avenue
Land Use: Two buildings with three
dwelling units in total
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 56’ X 132’/7,392 square feet
Assessment: $35,200
Taxes Owed: $8,444.88
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $12,300

Given the outside appearance of the
buildings and the nonconforming use of the
property, we are recommending these
houses for purchase and demolition.

1215 Portland Avenue
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 53’ X 125’/6,625 square feet
Assessment: $62,300
Taxes Owed: $6,980.03
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $10,100



It was vinyl sided sometime after 2009.
Other than that, the exterior of this house is
in really rough shape. There is a large hole
in the porch roof that is covered by the
plastic tarp. The shingles on the house roof
look aged. The aluminum wrap around
windows is missing in numerous spots.
The garage is in terrible shape. We are
proposing this house and garage for
purchase and demolition.

248 Merrill Street
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 38’ X 60’/2,280 square feet
Assessment: $3,700
Taxes Owed: $399.35
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $1,100

248 Merrill Street is outlined in yellow on
the map to the right. The vacant land
surrounding this lot was acquired by the
City in past foreclosure cycles. We
purchased the properties and demolished
the houses. These three properties make
up the original platted lot. We are
proposing to purchase this vacant lot in
order to reconstitute this platted lot and

sell it to an interested party.

1743 Harrison Avenue
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 50’ X 137’/6,850 square feet
Assessment: $46,300
Taxes Owed: $9,056.28
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $12,700



1743 Harrison Avenue (continued)
The exterior of this house is in rough
condition. It has been unoccupied since
early 2012. At one time, nine dogs were
living in the property, so we anticipate that
the inside is in bad condition. There is
currently a terrible odor coming from the
back of the house.

Properties Recommended for Purchase with Other City Funds

We are proposing to purchase 520 North Street with Neighborhood Stabilization Program
income.

520 North Street
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 50’ X 80’/4,000 square feet
Assessment: $54,600
Taxes Owed: $5,854.56
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $8,400

This property was posted unfit for human
habitation. Based on the outside
appearance, there are several maintenance
items on this house that have not been
dealt with. However, staff believes that the
house could be purchased with NSP1 funds,
rehabbed and sold to a qualified buyer.

904 Hackett Street
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 89’ X 126’/11,214 square feet
Assessment: $18,300
Taxes Owed: $3,777.36
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $6,200



The Engineering Division is recommending the purchase of this lot with the goal of
straightening the intersection of Hackett Street and Portland Avenue. The land could be
purchased with money from the streets overlay budget, and maintained by operations until
such time that the intersection could be improved.

Properties Not Recommended for Purchase

Below is the list of properties not being recommended for purchase due to lack of City funds.
The houses could be purchased by private parties, rehabbed, and resold and/or be rented.

1417 Copeland Avenue
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 50’ X 100’ lot/5,000 sq. ft.
Assessment: $32,900
Taxes Owed: $6,110.28
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $8,900

This property has a newer roof and vinyl
siding, so we assume that this house would
sell at the public auction.

1403 Carnegie Court
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 53’ X 90’ lot/4,770 square feet
Assessment: $43,200
Taxes Owed: $7,193.45
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $11,400

Based on the outside appearance, this is a
house in relatively good condition. We
recommend allowing this house to go to
auction to the general public.

922 Summit Avenue
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 40’ X 124’ lot/4,960 sq. ft.
Assessment: $34,400
Taxes Owed: $3,591.23
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $5,400

This house is in pretty good condition. It is
believed that this property would be

purchased by an investor. We recommend
allowing this house to go to auction.



1206 Randall Street
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 50’ X 110’ lot/5,500 sq. ft.
Assessment: $27,300
Taxes Owed: $4,453.47
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $6,700

Based on the outside appearance, this is a
house in relatively good condition. It is
believed that this property would be
purchased by an investor. We recommend
allowing this house to go to auction.

231 Carpenter Street
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 50’ X 113’ lot/5,650 sq. ft.
Assessment: $38,600
Taxes Owed: $6,238.86
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $9,100

Based on the outside appearance, this is a
house in relatively decent condition. It is
believed that this property would be
purchased by an investor. We recommend
allowing this house to go to auction.

1850 Sixth Street
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 117’ X 160’/18,730 square feet
Assessment: $54,400
Taxes Owed: $11,375.48
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $19,000

There are many state tax liens against this
property, which would make it difficult to
take possession of this property.



1025 Moore Street
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 124’ by 50’ lot/6,200 sq. ft.
Assessment: $46,800
Taxes Owed: $5,283.17
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $7,700

The outside of the property is in average
condition and could be easily rehabbed and
resold or rented by the private sector. We
recommend letting this house go to public
auction.

635 Gaston Drive
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 104’ X 30’/3,120 square feet
Assessment: $38,900
Taxes Owed: $5,263.27
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $7,800

The property owner died in March 2010. It
has been vacant since then. The main
detracting feature for this property is the
dwelling density in this neighborhood. For
an R-1B zoning, the maximum density is 5
dwelling units per acre, and the minimum
lot size is 6,000 square feet. In this area,
the density is 11 dwelling units per acre,
and this lot size is 3,120 square feet.

However, we do not have enough funds to
purchase this house and demolish it.

1116 La Salle Street
Land Use: Single Family House
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 148’ by 66’ lot/9,768 sq. ft.
Assessment: $37,400
Taxes Owed: $5,834.19
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $8,600

This house is in decent condition and could
easily be purchased by the private sector
and reoccupied. We recommend letting
this house go to public auction.



1035 Moore Street
Land Use: Duplex
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 124’ by 50’ lot/6,200 sq. ft.
Assessment: $61,200
Taxes Owed: $8,896.08
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $12,700

This property lost its ability to be used as a
duplex in 2009. There is one federal lien
against the property. It has a rough outside
appearance, with a deteriorated roof,
missing siding, and inconsistent wrapping
of trim. However, an inspection official
indicated that inside is in pretty good
condition and could be rehabbed. We
recommend letting this house go to auction.

1009 Central Avenue
Land Use: Duplex
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 49’ X 136’/6,689 square feet
Assessment: $60,000
Taxes Owed: $5,968.95
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $8,700

Although this property is a rough outside
appearance, Rock County believes this is a
house that could easily sell at auction.

729 Central Avenue
Land Use: Duplex
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 66’ X 128’/8,448 square feet
Assessment: $50,000
Taxes Owed: $8,676.39
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $8,700

Although this property has a rough outside
appearance, Rock County believes this is a
house that could easily sell at auction.



2116 Christilla Drive
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 22,650 square feet
Assessment: $29,200
Taxes Owed: $4,114.88
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $6,500

This parcel is made up of 2 buildable lots
with the sewer and water assessment due
at the transfer of title (approximately
$42,000). We believe we should let this lot
go to auction.

2134 Christilla Drive
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 45,740 square feet
Assessment: $35,300
Taxes Owed: $5,053.31
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $7,800

This parcel is made up of 4 buildable lots
with the sewer and water assessment due
at the transfer of title (approximately
$84,000). We believe we should let this lot
go to auction.

2127 Christilla Drive
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 52,270 square feet
Assessment: $36,600
Taxes Owed: $5,118.28
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $7,900

This parcel is made up of 4 buildable lots
with the sewer and water assessment due
at the transfer of title (approximately
$84,000). We believe we should let this lot
go to auction.



2250 Trevino Court
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 76,700 square feet
Assessment: $49,500
Taxes Owed: $6,867.46
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $10,400

This parcel is made up of 7 buildable lots
with the sewer and water assessment due
at the transfer of title (approximately
$147,000). We believe we should let this
lot go to auction.

2270 Trevino Court
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 21,870 square feet
Assessment: $29,000
Taxes Owed: $9,612.69
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $12,600

This parcel is made up of 2 buildable lots
with the sewer and water assessment due
at the transfer of title (approximately
$42,000). We believe we should let this lot
go to auction.

1420 Porter Avenue
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 50’ X 125’ lot/6,250 sq. ft.
Assessment: $5,900
Taxes Owed: $1,028.37
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $1,900

We would recommend that this lot be
allowed to go to public auction.



1021 White Avenue
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 71’ X 82’ lot/5,822 square feet
Assessment: $6,800
Taxes Owed: $16,597.01
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $34,000

This property once contained two
buildings, with six dwelling units, which
were condemned and demolished in 2009.
We recommend allowing this vacant lot to
go to auction.

1262 Dewey Avenue
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 66’ X 124’ lot/8,184 sq. ft.
Assessment: $6,500
Taxes Owed: $9,170.03
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $14,000

The former house on this lot was
condemned and demolished in 2011. We
recommend allowing this vacant lot to go to
auction.

1341 Park Avenue
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood Commercial
Parcel Size: 35’ X 107’ lot or 3,745 square
feet
Assessment: $900
Taxes Owed: $97.12
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $700.00

This property has one federal tax lien
against it. We recommend allowing this
vacant lot to go to auction.



257 Liberty Avenue
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-2, Two-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 9,603 square feet
Assessment: $7,300
Taxes Owed: $787.90
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $1,600

This lot has no street frontage and,
therefore, would only be of value to one of
the five adjacent neighbors. We
recommend allowing this lot to go to
auction.

440 Burton Street
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 149’ X 110’/16,553 square feet
Assessment: $16,700
Taxes Owed: $2,557.64
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $4,500
There are many state tax liens against this
property, which would make it difficult to
take possession of this property.

512 Highland Avenue
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 160’ by 33’ lot/5,280 sq. ft.
Assessment: $2,600
Taxes Owed: $6,949.13
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $11,000

This property contained a house which was
condemned and demolished in 2011. This
is a narrow lot which could be purchased
by the adjacent neighbor to the east. We
recommend letting this vacant lot go to
public auction.



515 Eighth Street
Land Use: Vacant Lot
Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family Residential
Parcel Size: 132’ by 66’ lot/8,712 sq. ft.
Assessment: $9,700
Taxes Owed: $1,788.74
Cost to Acquire: Estimated at $3,100

This property contained a house that we
condemned and demolished in 2007. This
lot could be purchased by one of the two
adjacent neighbors. We recommend letting
this vacant lot go to public auction.



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
RELEASE OF DEED RESTRICTION FOR

1021 CENTRAL AVENUE

WHEREAS, the warranty deed recorded on November 21, 2008, for the property located

at 1021 Central Avenue in the City of Beloit contains the following deed restriction:

“This real property shall only be used for the construction and owner
occupancy of a single-family home. Such restriction shall run with the land
and shall be binding on the Grantee and on each and every one of the
Grantee’s successors and assigns unless this restriction is waived in writing by
the City of Beloit at the direction of the City Council.” ; and

WHEREAS, the current owner of the property is requesting that the restriction be

removed so that the owner can sell the property to an investor who intends to utilize the

property as rental property; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit is amenable to releasing the aforementioned deed

restriction.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and

he is hereby, authorized to execute any document necessary to carry out the release of the

deed restriction.

Adopted this 15th day of September, 2014.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Mark Spreitzer, President
Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk
tdh\res\Central Avenue (1021)=res=140908 1036 (14-1179)



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Release of CDBG Deed Restriction on 1021 Central Ave.
Date: September 15, 2014
Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
In 2003 the City of Beloit provided $2,282.00 in CDBG funds for Habitat for Humanity to acquire a vacant lot at 1021
Central Avenue in order to build a single family home. At that time, a deed restriction was placed on the property by
the City of Beloit requiring the property “only be used for the construction and owner occupancy of a single-family
home”, and only the City Council could release this requirement. Habitat for Humanity also placed a deed restriction on
the property requiring the owner to be of low-moderate income for a period of five years. Construction of the single
family home was completed in 2007, and was sold to an owner-occupant in 2008. The property was sold to the current
owner-occupant in June of 2013. The Habitat for Humanity deed restriction condition was met and has already been
released by Habitat for Humanity. The current owner would like to sell the property to an investor, who plans to rent the
property and has requested that the City Council release the deed restriction in order to sell.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. The CDBG regulations would have required a deed restriction for only five years for occupancy of a low-moderate

income household for this particular project. The property has been owner- occupied for a period of six (6) years,
so this requirement was met by the Habitat for Humanity deed restriction.

2. The CDBG regulations do not require owner-occupancy for a project of this type.

3. Requiring owner-occupancy for the life of the property is far beyond any City or CDBG requirements.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on
the City’s mission.):

o Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to
how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality
guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Not applicable
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

– Not Applicable
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – Not Applicable
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – This would allow the

current LMI owner to sell the property and possibly rent to LMI individuals.

Action required/Recommendation:
Consideration of attached resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
No fiscal impact.

Attachments:
Deed restriction, Release of Deed Restriction, and Resolution.

tdh/files/14-1179/report to council=140908 1022



Dated

Signature(s)

My Commission is permanent.

THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY:

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin

* Elizabeth A. Krueger

to me known to be the person(s) who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

the above-named Larry N. Arft
Personally came before me on

ROCK

Elizabeth A. Krueger, Interim City Attorney (140918 1023)

100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 (CA 14-1179)

authenticated on

authorized by Wis. Stat. § 706.06)

(If not,

*

* By: Larry N. Arft, City Manager

TITLE: MEMBER STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN

STATE OF WISCONSIN

)COUNTY

.

(SEAL)

AUTHENTICATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT

1361-0115; 206-13610115

Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

) ss.

)

,

.

City of Beloit, a Wisconsin municipal corporation

RELEASE OF DEED RESTRICTION

Document Number Document Name

Recording Area

Name and Return Address

The City of Beloit hereby waives and releases the Deed Restriction, insofar as it
relates to a restriction imposed by the City of Beloit, described therein recorded
as Document Number 1846943 in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Rock
County, Wisconsin, on the 21

st
day of November, 2008.

This release affects the following parcel in Rock County, Wisconsin:

That part of Lot 4, Block 2, Strong’s Second Addition to the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin, that is bounded and described as follows: Commencing at
the SW corner of said Lot 4, and running from thence on the South line of said
Lot, 103.2 feet Easterly from said SW corner of said lot, thence Westerly in a
direct line to a point on the West line of said Lot 4, 12 feet Northerly from the SW
corner of said Lot 4; thence Southerly along the West line of said Lot 4 to the
place of beginning.

ALSO, Lot 3, Block 2, Strong’s Second Addition to the City of Beloit, Rock County,
Wisconsin, EXCEPTING and reserving therefrom that part of said lot described as
follows: Commencing at the NE corner of said Lot 3 and running from thence
Westerly along the North line of said Lot, 31 feet; thence Southerly to the SE
corner of said Lot 3; thence Northeasterly along the Easterly line of said Lot 3 to
the place of beginning.







RESOLUTION
RESCINDING PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT C14-04 BID AWARD

GATEWAY SEWER AND WATER EXTENSION

WHEREAS, on August 7, 2014, four competitive bids were received, the low bid being
from LTL Enterprises, LLC; and

WHEREAS, LTL Enterprises, LLC was awarded this contract on August 18, 2014, but
refused to execute the contract documents; and

WHEREAS, LTL Enterprises, LLC, has failed to execute the contract documents in a timely
manner.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of Beloit that the
prior award of Contract C14-04, Gateway Sewer and Water Extension, to LTL Enterprises, LLC, is
hereby rescinded and annulled.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 15th day of September, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, President
ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Rescinding Public Works Contract C14-04 Bid Award, Gateway Sewer and Water Extension

Date: September 15, 2014

Presenter(s): Greg Boysen, Public Works Director Department(s): Public Works/Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

This project will extend sanitary sewer and potable water mains to Townhall Road to serve the new CCI office building.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Four bids were received for this project. The low bid of $532,245.00 was from L. T. L. Enterprises, Inc and is 91.5%
of the engineer’s estimate of $581,486.00.

2. L.T.L. Enterprises, Inc was considered a responsible bidder for this project.
3. The costs for this project are as follows: $532,245.00 for construction, $ 79,755.00 for Change Orders or extra work,

for a total of $612,000.00.
4. L.T.L. Enterprises was contacted prior to the bid award and assured the City that the bid pricing was good and that

they would enter into a contract to construct the improvements.
5. L.T.L. Enterprises, Inc. has been non responsive to communications and has not returned executed contracts and is

now considered Non-responsive.
6. The City Attorney will be filing a claim with the Bid Bond Company in an attempt to redeem the bid bond of 10% if the

Bid Amount, approximately $53,000.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure;
to protect both our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future
generations.

This project will provide sewer and water services to the new CCI office building in a manner that accommodates this
goal.

2. Continue competitive and sustainable economic development focused on workforce development, as well as
business retention and recruitment to fully serve the business and entrepreneurial community resulting in
private investment and job creation.

With providing water and sewer services to the CCI office building, the city is encouraging new development in both
the Gateway business park, as well as the Ironworks campus, due to the desire to fill the vacated office space due to
this move.

3. Proactively partner with individuals and business to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize
personal injury, prevent loss of life and protect property and natural resources.

By providing sewer service to remove human feces, and by providing water that is able to properly feed an
automated fire sprinkler system, this goal is being addressed.

5. Apply sound, sustainable practices to promote a high quality community through historic preservation,
community revitalization and development.

By extending potable water and sewer services to new business developments, we are supporting this goal.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels



Revised 01-10-08

n/a

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

n/a

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

n/a

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

The utility service extensions meets the present and future human needs by providing for potable water and
removal of contaminated water in a manner that is acceptable to be the most efficient manner based on the
geographical location of the site.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends Un-awarding this Public Works Contract to L. T. L. Enterprises, Inc in the amount of
$532,245.00.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

There is funding is available in the 2013 Capital Improvement Plan.



Page 1 of 2

RESOLUTION
RE-AWARDING PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT C14-04

GATEWAY SEWER AND WATER EXTENSION

WHEREAS, on August 7, 2014, four competitive bids were received: the low bid being
from LTL Enterprises LLC, and the second low bid was from MZ Construction, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, LTL Enterprises LLC was awarded this contract on August 18, 2014, but
refused to execute the contract documents; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has rescinded and annulled the prior award of Contract C14-
04, Gateway Sewer and Water Extension, to LTL Enterprises LLC; and

WHEREAS, MZ Construction, Inc. is a qualified bidder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit and hereby
is awarded to MZ Construction, Inc., Linden, WI, in the following amounts:

MZ Construction, Inc
1770 Highway J, Route 1
P.O. Box 530
Linden, WI 53553

Base Bid $ 831,088.21
Allowance for Change Orders and/or Extra Work $ 123,911.79
TOTAL PROJECT COST $ 955,000.00

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the funding for the project, 2013 Capital Budget is
hereby amended, and an additional appropriation is authorized as follows:

ADDITIONAL FUNDING SOURCE:
P500008388-4999-2013 TIF 10 Fund Balance $422,000
TOTAL ADDITIONAL FUNDING SOURCE $422,000

EXPENDITURES: Original Amended Difference
P5008388-5523-2013
Gateway Sanitary Sewer Extension $196,000 $407,000 $211,000
P500/388-5525-2013
Gateway Water Extension $337,000 $548,000 $211,000
TOTAL $533,000 $955,000 $422,000



Page 2 of 2

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 15th day of September 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, President
ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution Re-awarding Contract C14-04, Gateway Sewer and Water Extension and Amending the 2013
Capital Budget

Date: September 15, 2014

Presenter(s): Greg Boysen, Public Works Director Department(s): Public Works/Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

This project will extend sanitary sewer and potable water mains to Townhall Road to serve the new CCI office building.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Four bids were received for this project. The second low bid of $831,088.21 was from MZ Construction, Inc and is
43% higher than the engineer’s estimate of $ 581,486.00.

2. MZ Construction, Inc is considered a responsible bidder for this project.
3. The costs for this project are as follows: $831,088.21 for construction, $ 123,911.79 for Change Orders or extra work,

for a total of $955,000.00.
4. The low bidder for this project was LTL Enterprises LLC, and has been non responsive to communications and has

not submitted executed contracts in a timely manner and is now nonresponsive.
5. A Budget amendment for the 2013 Capital Budget allocating $323,000 from TIF 10 fund balance for use on this

project.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure;
to protect both our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future
generations.

This project will provide sewer and water services to the new CCI office building in a manner that accommodates this
goal.

2. Continue competitive and sustainable economic development focused on workforce development, as well as
business retention and recruitment to fully serve the business and entrepreneurial community resulting in
private investment and job creation.

With providing water and sewer services to the CCI office building, the city is encouraging new development in both
the Gateway business park, as well as the Ironworks campus, due to the desire to fill the vacated office space due to
this move.

3. Proactively partner with individuals and business to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize
personal injury, prevent loss of life and protect property and natural resources.

By providing sewer service to remove human feces, and by providing water that is able to properly feed an
automated fire sprinkler system, this goal is being addressed.

5. Apply sound, sustainable practices to promote a high quality community through historic preservation,
community revitalization and development.

By extending potable water and sewer services to new business developments, we are supporting this goal.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

n/a



Revised 01-10-08

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

n/a

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

n/a

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

The utility service extensions meets the present and future human needs by providing for potable water and
removal of contaminated water in a manner that is acceptable to be the most efficient manner based on the
geographical location of the site.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends awarding this Public Works Contract to MZ Construction, Inc in the amount of
$831,088.21 and Amending the 2013 Capital Improvement Plan Allocating and additional $323,000 from TIF 10 fund balance
for this project.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

A budget amendment is necessary to the 2013 Capital Improvement Plan.


	Monday, September 15, 2014
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a.	Proclamation declaring September 18, 2014 Pitt Hopkins Awareness Day in the City of Beloit (Spreitzer)

	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a.	Resolution approving a 2014 HOME Budget Amendment (Christensen) Community Development Authority Recommendation for approval 6-0

	5.	CITIZENS PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the Regular meeting of September 2, 2014 (LeMire)
	b.	Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession and consumption of alcohol in the CBD-2, Central Business District-Fringe, for the property located at 500 Pleasant Street  (Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint)  (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission
	c.	Application for an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and “Class B” liquor license for Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint, LLC, Owned by Geronimo Hospitality Group, LLC, d/b/a Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint, located at 500 Pleasant Street, for an Outdoor Premises Extension (LeMire)  Refer to ABLCC
	d.	Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for Fiesta Cancun Authentic Mexican Restaurant of Beloit, Inc., Jose Cortes, Agent, located at 2648 Prairie Avenue (LeMire)  ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0
	e.	Resolution approving Change of Agent for the Board of Trustees – Beloit College, d/b/a Beloit College Coughy Haus, located at 708 Clary Street, from Steven Oliveri to Katie Marse (LeMire)  ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0
	f.	Resolution approving Change of Agent for The Last Lap Inc., d/b/a The Last Lap, located at 1028 Mary Street, from James W. Sandmire to Bradley J. Sandmire  (LeMire)ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0
	g.	Resolution awarding Public Works Contract C14-14, Eagles Ridge Park Pedestrian Path  (Boysen)

	7.	ORDINANCES – none
	8.	APPOINTMENTS
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none
	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution authorizing the City Manager to Acquire Tax Delinquent Properties from the Rock County Treasurer (Christensen)
	b.	Resolution authorizing release of Deed Restriction for 1021 Central Avenue (Christensen)
	c.	Resolution rescinding Public Works Contract C14-04 bid award, Gateway Sewer and Water Extension (Boysen)
	d.	Resolution re-awarding Public Works Contract C14-04, Gateway Sewer and Water Extension and amending the 2013 Capital Improvements Budget  (Boysen)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

